HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 10, 2013
1:39 p.m

1: 39: 26 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stoltze called the House Finance Conmmittee neeting
to order at 1:39 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Al an Austernan, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Mark Neuman, Vice-Chair
Representative Ma Costello
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara

Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes
Representative Scott Kawasaki, Alternate
Representati ve Cat hy Minoz
Representative Steve Thonpson
Representative Tanme W/ son

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative David Guttenberg

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Anna Fairclough; Laura Pierre, Staff, Senator Anna
Fai rcl ough; Kate Burkhart, Executive Director, Statew de
Suicide Prevention Council; Margaret Dowling, Staff to
Senator Cathy G essel; David Scott, Staff, Senator Donny
A son; Senator Pete Kelly, Sponsor; Heather Shattuck,
Staff, Senator Pete Kelly; WIIliam Streur, Conm ssioner,
Department of Health and Social Services; Angela Rodell,
Deputy Conmi ssioner, Treasury Division, Department  of
Revenue; Valerie Davidson, Senior Director, Legal and
| ntergovernnmental Affairs, Alaska Native Tribal Health
Consortium (ANTHC); Don Habegar, Director, D vision of
Cor por ati ons, Busi ness and Pr of essi onal Li censi ng,
Department of Commerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent;
Dave Scott, Staff, Senator O son; Doug Letch, Staff,

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



Senat or

Gary Stevens; Senator Cathy G essel; Ed Fogels,

Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Natural Resources.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Colin Maynard, Menber, AELS Board, Anchorage

SUMVARY

SB 2

SB 16

| NTERSTATE M NI NG COVWPACT & COWM SS|I ON

SB 2 was REPORTED out of conmttee with a "do
pass"” recomendati on and with one new fiscal note
from Departnment of Natural Resources and one
previ ously published zero fiscal note: FN 2(ADM.

BD OF ARCH TECTS, ENG NEERS, SURVEYORS
SB 16 was REPORTED out of committee with a "no

recommendation” and with one previously published
fiscal note: FN2(CED).

CSSB 18(FIN) am

BUDGET: CAPI TAL

CSSB 18(FI'N) am was SCHEDULED but not HEARD.

CSSB 21(FIN) am(efd fld)

O L AND GAS PRODUCTI ON TAX

CSSB 21(FIN) amefd fld)was SCHEDULED but not
HEARD.

SB 24 MARI NE TRANSPORTATI ON ADVI SORY BQARD
SB 24 was REPORTED out of commttee with a "do
pass" recomendati on and with one new fiscal note
from Departnment of Transportation and Public
Facilities.

SB 37 EXTEND SUl Cl DE PREVENTI ON COUNCI L
SB 37 was REPORTED out of committee with a "do
pass" recommendati on and with one new fiscal note
from Departnent of Health and Social Services.

CSSB 38(FIN)

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



STATE MEDI CAL BOARD
CSSB 38(FIN) was REPORTED out of commttee with a
"no recommendation® and wth one previously
publ i shed fiscal inpact note: FN1(CED)
SB 88 ALASKA NATI VE MEDI CAL CENTER HOUSI NG

SB 88 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

1:39:42 PM

#sb37
SENATE BI LL NO. 37

"An  Act extending the termnation date of the
Statewi de Suicide Prevention Council; and providing
for an effective date."

1:40: 06 PM

LAURA Pl ERRE, STAFF, SENATOR ANNA FAI RCLOUGH, discussed the
bill. She stated the reconmmendation of Legislative Budget
and Audit (LB&A) to extend the council 6 years to June 30,
2019. The council was conprised of 17 nenbers. Senator
Fai rcl ough served on the council as a Representative and a
Senator. The council nmade great strides in increasing

neeting attendance and inplenmenting a statewide strategic
plan for suicide prevention outreach across Al aska. The
council's plan was called "Casting the Net Upstream" The
pl an pronoted the prevention of suicide in Al aska.

Co-Chair Stoltze handed the gavel to Representative
Costel | o.

Representative Costell o appreciated the sponsor's interest
in the issue.

1:41: 39 PM

Representati ve Munoz asked how the $415 thousand in school -
based grants were distributed. She asked to know nore about
the projects funded by the grants. Ms. Pierre deferred the
gquestion to Kate Burkhart.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



Representative Kawasaki asked about the LB&A audit
suggesting the board' s extension. He asked about other
recommendations made in the audit. M. Pierre responded
that other audit findings could be discussed by M.
Bur khart .

Senat or Anna Faircl ough joined the neeting.

1: 43: 27 PM

KATE BURKHART, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, STATEW DE SUI Cl DE
PREVENTION COUNCIL, replied to Representative Kawasaki's
guestion first. She stated that the audit nade three
recomendations. The first was that the council would
perform an annual review of its executive director in
partnership with the Mental Health Board and the Advisory
Board on Alcoholism and Drug Abuse. She added that LB&A
established a process by which the annual review would
occur. The council worked with its partners to nenorialize
the framework of the council | eadership.

Ms. Burkhart stated the second reconmendation to track and
report council attendance to the governor's office. An
attendance log was created for transmission to the
governor's office, the Speaker of the House and President
of the Senate. The council did not have difficulty reaching
a quorum due to recommendations nade in the prior audit.

Ms. Burkhart continued with the third recomendation for

the council to develop and nonitor perfornmance neasures
t hat supported statutory duties and annually report
progress. She noted that the council had performance

nmeasures for many years, which had not been transmitted to
the mssions and neasures |anguage utilized by LB&A or
included in the Departnent of Health and Social Services
(DHSS) online performance neasures. The council was worKking
with DHSS to translate neasures from the state plan into
| anguage di scerni bl e by LB&A

Ms. Burkhart answered Representative Minoz's question. She
shared that the funding available for school -based suicide
prevention canme through the council to the Departnent of
Education and Early Developnent (DEED). The increnent
fl owed through the council to allow the partnership between
the council and the departnent. She added that the first
year's funding would be provided to Alaska's alternative
schools who were participating in a wellness initiative

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



funded with a grant from the Division of Behavioral Health.
She pointed out that children fromalternative schools were
nmost likely to report depression, suicide attenpts and drug
and al cohol wuse. She noted that 20 percent of school
districts applied for the funding. The proposals were
reviewed and many woul d be funded. She expressed confidence
that the progranms would enhance services in the school
districts.

1: 47:43 PM

Representative Minoz asked if groups that were not
affiliated with the school could apply for funding. M.
Burkhart replied that the school -based funding stream was
designed to provide funding for suicide prevention. She
mentioned additional options for other entities interested
in suicide prevention funding. An FY 13 capital
appropriation secured funding for small grants up to $5
t housand for conmunity organizations. The Al aska Comunity
Foundati on matched the FY 13 fundi ng.

Ms. Burkhart pointed out the Conprehensive Prevention G ant
Pr ogr am which included opportunities for comunity
coalitions and organizations to apply for prevention
f undi ng.

1: 50: 23 PM

Representative Gara thanked Ms. Burkhart for her work. He
stated that mnuch of the work was |owcost and outreach
related. He pointed to work to enhance suicide prevention
prograns. He asked if he should pay special attention to a
particular increment in the operating budget conference
commttee. M. Burkhart replied that there was not a
specific FY 14 suicide-prevention increnent.

Senat or Fairclough appreciated tine that the House Finance
Comm ttee had taken on the issue. She spoke to high suicide
rates in Alaska. She stated that the council made
consi derabl e progress during her nmenbership. She credited
Ms. Burkhart with an excellent job.

Representative Costell o CLOSED public testinony.

Representative WIson discussed the replacenent fiscal
i mpact note from DHSS.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



Representative WIson MOWNWED to REPORT SB 37 out of
commttee wth i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

SB 37 was REPORTED out of commttee with a "do pass”
recommendati on and with one new fiscal note from Departnment
of Health and Social Services.

1: 54: 08 PM
AT EASE

1: 56: 20 PM
RECONVENED

#sb16
SENATE BI LL NO 16

"An Act relating to the Board of Registration for
Architects, Engineers, and Land Surveyors and to the
Depar t ment of Commer ce, Comuni ty, and Econom c
Devel opnent . "

1:56: 44 PM

MARGARET DOALI NG STAFF TO SENATOR CATHY G ESSEL, presented
the bill. She stated that SB 16 revised current |aw, which
allowed the state board of registration for architects,
engineers and land surveyors to hire a full-tine
investigator. The bill had a provision changing a section
allowng electronic licensing examnations. The Dboard

shared a part time investigator with 6 other boards serving
a total of 18 thousand |icensees. Every board had its own
investigation needs and the investigator must have
expertise in each subject and famliarity with the detailed
regul ati ons pertinent to each board.

Ms. Dowl ing continued that the primary m ssion of the board
was to regulate the profession to assure that a specified
| evel of conpetence through testing, certification and
education. The process protected the safety and welfare of
Al aska's public. The professional's reputations were also

protected by the regulatory process. | f conpet ency
standards were breeched or a question arose about a person
practicing wthout a license, the public and other

prof essionals were at ri sk.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



Ms. Dowling continued to explain that once a conplaint was
filed, an investigation into the validity of the conplaint
was initiated. Wien investigators were few, the public was
at risk. The board regulated 15 engineering specialties,
with 9 of the 15 specialties added |ast year. The nunber of
licensees and clainms continued to increase. She noted that
116 cases were opened in the last 15 nonths adding to the
al ready heavy workload of the part-tinme investigator. The
i nvestigator could not possibly keep up wth the demands of
t he position.

2:01:19 PM

Ms. Dowl ing discussed increasing licensing fees to cover
t he expenses associated with the board.

Representative Holnmes asked if the issue was supported by
the board nmenbers. Ms. Dowling replied in the affirmative.
She explained that board nenbers brought the issue to
Senator G essel's attention. Senator G essel then agreed to
carry the bill. The potential cost increase per |icense was
m ni mal .

Co-Chair Stoltze returned to the room

COLIN  MAYNARD, MVEMBER, AELS BOARD, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), spoke in favor of the legislation. He
stated that the board had two and one half investigators,
but was now down to one seventh of an investigator. The
investigator had very little opportunity to travel because
of the high workl oad. He added that the board of the Al aska
Pr of essi onal Design Council supported the bill.

Representative WIson discussed the fiscal inpact note from
the Departnent of Commer ce, Community and Econom c
Devel opnent .

Representative Costell o CLOSED public testinony.

Representative WIson MOWED to REPORT SB 16 out of
comittee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

Co-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED. He reviewed the bill and found
no "f eat her beddi ng. " Co- Chair Stoltze W THDREW  hi s
objection. There being NO further OBJECTION, it was so
or der ed.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



SB 16 was REPORTED out of comittee wth a "no"
recommendation and with one previously published fiscal
note: FN2( CED).

2:06: 01 PM
AT EASE

2:08: 23 PM
RECONVENED

#sb38
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 38(FIN

"An Act extending the ternmination date of the State
Medi cal Board; relating to the executive secretary of
the State Medical Boar d; and providing for an
effective date.”

2:08: 33 PM

DAVI D SCOTIT, STAFF, SENATOR DONNY CLSON, addressed the bill
that extended the sunset date of the state nedical board
through 2020. He stated that LB&A reviewed the board
activities and concluded that the board served the public
interest. The LB&A reconmended a seven year sunset date
extension. The board was responsible for the 1icensing,
regulation and discipline of physicians, podi atri sts,
physi ci an assi stants and paranedi cs. The board had two full
time enpl oyees and the costs were covered by licensing fees
and all revenue from the board covered its full operating
costs. The board unaninously supported increasing fees to
cover the costs associated with the |egislation.

2:10: 57 PM

Representative WIlson pointed to the three deficiencies
listed in the audit that addressed a |ack of oversight. M.
Scott stated that the board president would directly
address the deficiencies noted in the audit.

Representative WIson noted audit deficiencies typically
|l ed to shortened extensions.

Representati ve Kawasaki wondered about the salary increase

provided in the bill. He wondered if it was typical to
include a salary increase in a board sunset bill. Co-Chair

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



Stoltze noted that board extensions sonetines carried ngjor
policy initiatives, but the legislature was reformng the
process.

2:14: 12 PM

Representative Gara asked the conmttee chair to bring the
medi cal board representative before the commttee by
tel ephone. He told a story related to | aw practi ce.

2:16: 44 PM

Co- Chair Austernman wondered what a range 23 paid. M. Scott
asked for a repeat of the question.

Co- Chair Austerman repeated his question. M. Scott offered
to get back to the commttee with the answer. He estinmated
that a range 23 paid $75 thousand per year.

Senator Pete Kelly joined the audience.

Vi ce-Chair Neuman joined the commttee.

Co-Chair Austernman stated that a large disparity existed
between a doctor's charges for services in Alaska when
conpared to those in the Lower 48. He thought that the
fiscal note for the bill explained that disparity.

2:18:27 PM

Representative Mnoz asked about a disciplinary action
taken against a licensee. She wondered how the public
received information about the action. M. Scott did not
know.

Representative WIson asked if the sponsor would oppose a
shorter sunset. She was not convinced that the audit's
deficiencies had been addressed. M. Scott replied that
there woul d not be an objection to a reasonabl e extension.

CSSB 38(FIN was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

2:20: 20 PM
AT EASE

2:22: 00 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



RECONVENED

#sbh88
SENATE BI LL NO. 88

"An Act authorizing the state bond commttee to issue
certificates of partici pation to fi nance t he
construction and equipping of residential housing to
serve the Anchorage canpus of the Alaska Native
Medical Center; and authorizing the Departnent of
Adm ni stration to ent er into a | ease- purchase
agreenent for the benefit of the Al aska Native Triba
Heal th Consortium"”

2:22:22 PM

SENATOR PETE KELLY, SPONSOR, addressed the bill. He spoke
to increased costs in Medicaid. He pointed to the Medicaid
task force who made sone recomendations and initiated the
conversation about cont ai ni ng Medi cai d costs. One
recommendation was to nove people who were utilizing
Medicaid services while eligible for Tribal Health into
hospitals eligible for Tribal Health grants that reinbursed
at 100 percent. Wth Medicaid, the state paid 50 percent

and Medicaid paid 50 percent. The bill incentivized care
for hospitals that pay 100 percent. The departnent
esti mat ed an $8.8 mllion savi ng per year W th

i npl enmentation of the |egislation.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked about a direct appropriation or a
bond. Senator Kelly replied that the net savings would be
$8.8 mllion per year. He furthered that the bill would
bond for the Alaska Native Medical Center (ANMO) in
Anchorage for housing of patients that would then receive
100 percent grant funding from Medicaid. He anticipated
even greater savings with tinme.

2:25:41 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze pointed to construction opportunities for
the capital side of the issue and savings on the operating
side. Senator Kelly affirned.

HEATHER SHATTUCK, STAFF, SENATOR PETE KELLY, explained that
the state was responsible for nultiple pieces when paying
Medi caid. The populations wth high-risk pregnancies in
rural areas benefitted greatly. She believed that the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



cultural aspect would incentivize Alaska natives who were
Medicaid eligible to utilize the facility. The facility's
| ease was 15 years long and required a nmenorandum of the
state. The legislation would increase access to tribal
facilities, which was in part contingent on expanding
housing abilities.

Co-Chair Stoltze requested departnent testinony.

2:30: 28 PM

WLLIAM STREUR, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
SOCI AL SERVI CES, discussed his involvenent in the bill. He
stated that approximately 40 percent of state services were
delivered within the tribal system The consequence was a
50 percent reinbursenent for 60 percent of services. The
di scussion evolved cooperatively with Tribal Health who
determ ned the greatest needs of tribal nenbers. WMaterna
and child health was deened the greatest need.

Comm ssioner Streur pointed out that the state spent
approximately $1 mllion per year for each of the first
three years for a challenged birth. He nentioned an
i mmunodeficient baby whose prescriptions alone cost $36
t housand per nonth. One proposal was to bring rural nothers
into urban areas for prenatal services. He projected $1.9
mllion for increased deliveries per year within the native
system He added that operating room expansion was
projected to cost $595 thousand.

Conmmi ssioner Streur commented on the abundance of ear, nose
and throat problens occurring in rural areas, which if l|eft
untreated could lead to permanent damage to children and
their ability to be fully productive citizens. The proposal
was for increased nedical capabilities for those issues. He
added that prenatal outpatient capacity would save $1
mllion per year and the increased day capacity would save
$600 thousand per year. The total estimate was for $3.8
mllion in Medicaid savings per year as an offset to the
Tribal Health facility.

2:34: 26 PM

Comm ssioner Streur discussed tel enedicine capabilities. He
noted that the tel enedicine program at Al aska Native Triba
Heal th Consortium (ANTHC) provided a national nodel. He

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



bel i eved that the performance neasures would be included in
t he nmenorandum of agreenent.

2:35:45 PM

Vi ce-Chair Neuman asked if the facility would be located in
Anchorage. Comm ssioner Streur replied yes, the facility
woul d be located on the ANTHC canpus and connected by sky
bridge to the Native Medical Center

Vi ce-Chair Neuman noted that 60 percent of Al aska natives
did not attend visits with a primary care provider, but
i nstead chose energency services. He asked how the Al aska
natives could be convinced to choose the facility over
energency hospital care. He wondered how the percentage
could be | owered.

2:37:32 PM

Comm ssioner Streur responded that nobst native citizens
would arrive at the facility from Anchorage. He noted that
people coming into Anchorage may or may not end up at a
tribal facility. The intent of the legislation was early
outreach and additional services. The prenatal services
would bring young nothers into the facility for care
earlier in their pregnancies. The prenatal service would
encourage deliveries within the Tribal Health system

2:39:25 PM

Vi ce-Chair Neuman asked about an opportunity for veteran
services. Comm ssioner Streur responded that an effort to
increase veteran care was active in Bethel, Nonme and
Barrow. He nentioned outreach in other rural areas. The
outreach led to over 100 veterans in the Cordova area. Co-
Chair Stoltze clarified the city of Cordova.

Vi ce-Chair Neuman hoped to get additional help for veterans
in his area.

2:41:11 PM

Vi ce-Chair Neuman asked if there was a Neonatal |ntensive
Care Unit (NICU) in the facility.

Comm ssioner Streur replied that the facility did have a
NICU with eight beds as part of the Al aska pediatric

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



partnership. Wen the eight beds were full, transfers to
Provi dence were nade. Co-Chair Stoltze assuned that the
prenatal care mnimzed the need for the N CU Comm ssioner
Streur agreed.

Representative Kawasaki pointed to a centrally |ocated
hospital in Fairbanks. He understood that the Fairbanks
Native Association had a facility to house people receiving
care at the new facility. He wondered if the sane bondi ng
mechani sm could be used for other facilities across the
state.

2:43: 23 PM

Comm ssioner Streur replied that the efforts to expand
Medi caid type services had been proposed in a variety of
mechani sms since  2006. He advocated for conti nued
devel opnent of the services.

Co-Chair Stoltze nmentioned the Mat-Su Valley Tribal Health
facility. He wondered if benefits from that new facility
were observed. Comm ssioner Streur responded that the
facility was not yet open. He believed that the dental
clinic was the only open portion.

Co-Chair Stoltze believed that the Mat-Su valley had 10 or
11 percent Al aska native popul ation.

2:46: 07 PM

ANGELA RODELL, DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER, TREASURY DI VI SI ON
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, addressed SB 88, which authorized
t he issuance of certificates of participation in the anount
of $35 mllion. The funding would be used to finance the
construction of a 179 bed facility at the Al aska Native
Medi cal Center to serve patients and famlies. The
certificates of participation would be used to finance five
of the six floors in the facility with ANTHC financing the
sixth floor. The costs were capped at $35 mllion with any
cost overruns born by ANTHC. The ultimate project goal was
to realize annual general fund savings. The total cost to
the state was estimated at $42 mllion, which included
principal and interest to repay the certificates over a
period of 15 years. The paynents were subject to annual
appropriation. The annually required debt service cost
approximately $3 million per year. An assunption was built
in for increased rates. She noted that Departnent of

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



Adm nistration (DOA) would enter into a |ease agreenent
with ANTHC who would be responsible for the design and
building of the facility. Construction invoices would be
submtted to the departnent wth the assistance of
Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS). The state
would maintain the tax exenption on the certificates of
partici pation.

Representative WIlson asked if the noney wuld be
reinbursed to the state. Ms. Rodell replied that the state
woul d fund the facility. Medicaid savings would provide the
funding. The facility was a crucial aspect of the savings.

Representative Holnmes pointed to page 2, lines 24 through
27. She stated that the bill did not nention participation
by ANTHC. Ms. Rodell clarified that the bill was related to
the $35 million only. The entire project cost exceeded that
anount. The partnership agreenent was that ANTHC would
contribute to the construction of the total project.

Representative Hol mes noted that subsection (a) referred to
the project as a residential housing facility with al
remai ni ng funding connected to the investnent incone earned
on the proceeds. She believed the I|anguage did not
adequately detail the private partner's participation

2:52:22 PM

Ms. Rodell answered that she was unsure about acknow edgi ng
the private partner's participation in the |egislation
because ANTHC woul d be contributing equity. Representative
Hol mes was supportive of the project and would speak
further with Ms. Rodell about the issue.

Co- Chair Austerman asked if the Departnent of Revenue (DOR)
woul d sell the bond. Ms. Rodell replied in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Austerman asked about the federal governnment's
participation in the project. M. Rodell answered that once
the state went forward with the project, the departnent
would cone to the legislature for an annual debt service
request regardless of federal government participation
regardi ng Medi cai d.

Co- Chair Austerman asked for verification that the project

was dependent on the federal governnent. Ms. Rodell replied
in the affirmative.

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



Representative Mnoz asked if the state would derive
benefit once the facility had been paid off and was
constructed. M. Rodell replied that the state would
continue to derive benefit due to the savings.

Representative Minoz clarified that the state shared the
cost of Medicaid with the federal governnent. She wondered
if the state would derive the financial benefit for the
savings allowed by the presence of the facility. She asked
if the state's contribution to Medicaid would |essen. M.
Rodel | deferred the question to Commi ssioner Streur.

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that the legislation would allow for
nmedi cal services for additional Alaskans and provide a
per manent accrual of benefit.

2:57:16 PM

Co-Chair Austerman pointed to the fiscal note listing $2.8
mllion per year paid by the state. Ms. Rodell concurred.

Representative WIson asked what would happen if the state
did not fund the $3 mllion annual paynment. M. Rodel
replied that the state would be in default.

Representative Wl son asked if the state was conpeting with
the private sector. Ms. Rodell deferred the question.

2:58:41 PM

VALERI E DAVI DSON, SENI OR Dl RECTOR, LEGAL AND
| NTERGOVERNVENTAL  AFFAI RS, ALASKA NATIVE TRIBAL HEALTH
CONSORTI UM (ANTHC), spoke in support of the |egislation.
She stated that expanding patient housing would allow an
expansion of services at ANTHC. She provided exanples of
patients that would benefit from the facility. The first
story pertained to a pregnant woman from a small village
who experienced conplications and needed to be in a
hospital but was wunfamliar wth the use of Medicaid
vouchers. She nentioned her own personal experience. She
el aborated on the story. She stated that patients had to
| earn navigation of a whole new world in Anchorage when
they were from a village. She provided information on the
proposed facility. She explained how a patient would be
treated in the new facility. She discussed the services

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



provided at the facility including the cafeteria, shared
kit chen and housi ng.

3:04: 33 PM

Ms. Davidson continued to discuss how the facility would
hel p various patients of all ages. She furthered that ANTHC
was the highest level trauma center in the state. The
project allowed the state to realize an annual savings of
$8.8 mllion. The state's required contribution would be
$2.8 to $2.9 nmillion annually. She spoke to the necessary
housi ng conmponent. She thanked the commttee for its tine.

Representative Holnmes asked if the facility would enhance
the ability for telenedicine services. MVs. Davi dson
answered that ANTHC had a program for telenedicine service
whi ch allowed savings in ear, nose and throat services. Her
organi zati on had docunmented the travel savings because of
t he tel enedicine services. She stated that the organization
expl ored expansi on of tel ecardi ol ogy services.

Representati ve Hol nes di scussed support for the benefits of
t el enedi ci ne servi ces.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked ANTHC was under the managenent of
the Southcentral wunbrella. M. Davidson replied that the
Sout hcentral foundation and ANTHC joint-nmanaged the Al aska
Native Medical center.

Co-Chair Stoltze remarked about the partnership. M.
Davi dson commented on the many benefits of the partnership.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked about the facility in Wasilla known
as Benteh Nuutah. He wondered about its progress.

Ms. Davidson replied that once a facility was able to bil
services that were available by a tribal health facility,
the state i medi atel y saw savi ngs.

3:10: 57 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze hoped that there was a decreasing nunber
of Alaskans that would require Medicaid because of a
thriving econony.

Representati ve Edgnon asked about the safety aspect of
bringing patients in from villages. M. Davidson replied

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



that the consortium had heard stories about people being
taken advantage of in cab rides to the ANMC. She provided
other stories about patients who did not speak English
well. The housing facility goal was to provide a hone away
from hone. She shared a personal story related to her
chi | dhood. She furthered that Al aska Native famlies wanted
what all famlies wanted. She stated that when there were
opportunities to help the lives of mnmany people it was
i nportant to seize them

Co-Chair Stoltze inferred that the bill financed a facility
with great opportunities for savings, which included
facilitated transportation for rural patients. M. Davidson
replied in the affirmative. The transportation from the
housing to the airport would be provided.

3:16: 40 PM

Representative WIlson asked if Medicaid eligibility was a
patient requirement. M. Davidson replied that the housing
facility would be available to all eligible individuals.
Co-Chair Stoltze expounded that Medicaid patients utilizing
the facility would benefit state savings. M. Davidson
concurred.

Co-Chair Stoltze CLOSED public testinony.

SB 88 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

3:19: 14 PM
RECESSED

7:36: 27 PM
RECONVENED

#sb38
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 38(FI N

"An Act extending the termination date of the State
Medi cal Board; relating to the executive secretary of
the State Medical Boar d; and providing for an
effective date.”

7:36: 27 PM

House Fi nance Committee 17 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



DON HABEGAR, DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF CORPORATI ONS, BUSI NESS
AND  PROFESSI ONAL LI CENSI NG DEPARTMENT OF COMVERCE
COVWUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT stated that he had an
opportunity to listen to the comrmttee's prior hearing on
the | egislation.

DAVE SCOIT, STAFF, SENATOR OLSON, answered Representative
Munoz's earlier question about the board' s presentation of
findings to the public. He noted that the admnistrative
procedure act was applicable to the board allowi ng for the
Open Meeting Act. He added that "the board shall nmake
available to the public the information maintained under
(a) and (b) of the section for each person |icensed under
this chapter" as stated in AS 08.64. 130.

M. Scott responded to Representative WIson's question
about the board's recommendations regarding the audit from
LB&A.

Co-Chair Stoltze directed the question to M. Habegar.

M. Habegar stated that the audit's first point addressed
t he database issues. He noted that anple work was done this
nmonth to continue with the nmaintenance agreenent. He stated
that testing the changes in the database and the records
woul d prove the work done.

7:40: 21 PM

M . Habegar stated that the second piece of the audit dealt
with continuing education. The departnent inplenented a
prof essional |icensing database system He added that the
recommendation also required procedures mandating that the
board report to the federation of state database to ensure
that a check-and-bal ance system was established. The board
ensured that their executive adm nistrator was liaison with
the chief nedical investigator to ensure tineliness.

7:41: 47 PM

Representative WIlson noted that the conputer system change
led to the issues. She wondered if the inprovenents in the
dat abase gave the director the confidence to approve of the
extension. M. Habegar admtted that he was hopeful and had
many | T specialists working on the issue.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



Co-Chair Stoltze noted fewer and fewer problens with the
new di rector of boards and conm ssi ons.

7:42:54 PM

Representative Kawasaki asked about the salary schedule
changes and the other boards and comm ssions. He wondered
if the departnment would provide staff for the board. He
asked if other boards had the latitude to select salary
ranges for executive directors and staff.

M. Habegar replied that salaried positions were set by
DOA; however the Certified Public Accountant (CPA) board
did address the issue by placing a range in statute. The
salary raise was not allowed outside of the admnistration
process and he believed that the board was taking advantage
of the CPA nodel

7:44:18 PM

Representative Gara asked about the snmall nedical conmunity
and the difficulty with doctors realizing that another had
breached duties. He wondered about an outside doctor
brought in to do an evaluation. M. Habegar responded that
occasionally an outside doctor conmes in and in a standard
of care issue; staff had certain liaisons that woul d advise
staff. If the case investigation did require experts, they
were hired outside of the state.

7:46:51 PM

Representati ve Gara encouraged the practice.
Co-Chair Stoltze CLOSED public testinony.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked about objections to changing the
sunset date. Representative WIson stated no.

7:48: 21 PM

Representative Costello discussed the fiscal note which
indicated fiscal inpact of $484.6 thousand for FY 14
through FY 19 and two full time positions.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the benefits would be increased
to $110 t housand.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



Representative Costello MOVED to REPORT CSSB 38 (FIN) out
of commttee wth individual reconmendations and the
acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

CSSB 38 (FIN was REPORTED out of commttee with a "no"
recommendation and wth one previously published fiscal
i npact note: FN1(CED).

#sb24
SENATE BILL NO. 24

"An Act relating to the Alaska Marine Transportation
Advi sory Board."

7:51: 03 PM

DOUG LETCH, STAFF, SENATOR GARY STEVENS, stated that the
bill was smaller and proposed changing the Marine
Transportation Advisory Board and adding a twelfth seat
from Southcentral Alaska. The legislation would allow the
twelfth seat enabling nenbership to participate from
cormunities served on Kodiak Island, the Kachenak Bay,
Sel dovia and Honer. He noted an additional section
reflecting Gustavus' consideration for community nenbership
in the Southeast section. He nentioned a change in the
House Transportation Commi ttee at t he request of
Representative WIlson on page 2 line 10 renove the word
"retired" and add "20 years of experience." The change
woul d increase the applicant pool for that particular seat.
He spoke about the Marine Transportation Advisory Board
(MTAP). He pointed out witten testinony in conmttee
menber s’ packets from Honmer and Seldovia Chanber of
Commer ce.

7:54:57 PM

Representative Holnes asked if the board had a history of
deadl ock votes. M. Letch replied that there had never been
a tie vote and the board did not have bylaws. The board was
am cable and wanted to bring better ferry laws to the
state.

Co-Chair Stoltze CLOSED public testinony.

Representative Costell o discussed the fiscal note show ng a
fiscal inpact of $3 thousand for FY 14 through FY 19.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



Representative WIson asked how often the board net. M
Letch replied that the board was required to attend one
neeting per year, so the noney would cover the cost of the
short neeting.

7:58: 01 PM

Representative Edgnon announced that M. Letch was
retiring. M. Letch replied that he would nove to Ol ando
Florida after the | egislative session.

Co-Chair Stoltze comented that M. Letch was a thoughtfu
and wonderful enployee. He was an asset to the building.

Representative Costello MOVED to REPORT SB 24 out of
committee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

SB 24 was REPORTED out of conmittee with a "do pass”
recomrendati on and with one new fiscal note from Departnent
of Transportation and Public Facilities.

8:00: 28 PM
AT EASE

8:01: 15 PM
RECONVENED

#sbh2
SENATE BILL NO 2

"An Act enacting the Interstate Mning Conpact and
relating to the conpact; relating to the Interstate
Mning Commssion; and providing for an effective
date."

8:01: 15 PM

SENATOR CATHY G ESSEL introduced her bill which would
el evate Al aska from an associate nmenber to full nenbership
in the Interstate M ning Conpact and Commi ssion (IMCC). The
change would allow Al aska's governor be an active voting
menber giving Alaska a voice on the national |evel. The
conpact was established in April 1971 and consisted of 20
menber states and five associate nmenber states. The powers

House Fi nance Committee 21 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



of the comm ssion were found on page four of the bill. The
estimated cost included $40 thousand in dues, which was
partially based on resource production. She nentioned a
chart in the bill materials that illustrated the dues
cal cul ation

8:05: 01 PM

ED FOGELS, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMVENT OF NATURAL
RESOURCES, testified on the bill. He stated that Al aska now
had seven operating mnes that did well environnentally. He
noted that the permitting and regulatory processes were
inmproving. The bill's initiative was to strengthen the
col | aborative relationship wth the federal agenci es
because permtting relied heavily on federal rules and
regul ations. He stated that |IMCC brought together the
environmental and mning prograns from 26 states in the
nation. In this forum the states exchanged information
about potential areas of inprovenent.

M. Fogels explained that I MCC was instrunmental in hel ping
Alaska with the nunber of initiatives where the federal
government was "over-reaching." He provided an exanple. He
was the governor's designee for IMCC and he had seen the
benefits of the collaboration first hand.

8:07:46 PM

Representati ve Hol nes asked about page 4 and the powers of
the comm ssion. She noted that the comm ssion mght nake
recommendations, which could be broadly read. M. Fogels
replied that frequent |IMXC actions included resolutions
directed at federal agencies.

Representative Costello appreciated the bill and she was
di sappointed that the previous version of the bill did not
el evate Alaska to full nenbership. She asked if there were
tangi bl e benefits to full nenbers.

8:09: 08 PM

M. Fogels replied that the nost significant benefit was
the ability for Alaska to take a | eadership role and better
guide the policy chosen by the conmmssion. Initially the
conmi ssi on was an east-coast coal -centric organization

8:10: 10 PM

House Fi nance Committee 22 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



Representative Costell o asked about the commttee structure
of the neetings. She asked about his participation in the
neetings. M. Fogels replied that the conm ssion hosted
multiple conmttees and he had participated in neetings,
but was not allowed to vote as an associ ate nenber.

Vice-Chair Neuman asked if |IMCC had addressed Alaska's
mning permts. He asked how the conm ssion was able to
help mners. M. Fogels replied that IMCC recently entered
into a nmenorandum of understanding with the Mne Safety
Health Admi nistration. He commented that snmaller rura
m nes were unable to abide by the strict federal guidelines
set forth by the Mne Safety Health Adm nistration. He was
able to bring the concerns of the snmaller Al askan mners to
the attention of | MC

8:12: 41 PM

Vice-Chair Neuman reviewed the travel costs on page 1
showi ng $20 thousand for two trips. M. Fogels replied that
he traveled frugally. He explained that there were two | MCC
neeti ngs per year and the departnent sent two people to the
nmeetings. Additional neetings were organized depending on
the issues. He stated that mning synposiuns for regulators
were al so hosted in western states. He hoped to incorporate
staff from Department of Environnental Conservation (DEC)
and Departnent of Fish and Gane (DF&G) .

8:14:55 PM

Representative Minoz asked about the 404 permtting
| egi sl ation and how the I MCC could help. M. Fogels replied
that the quest for Alaska state prinmacy was part of a
broader effort to acquire nore control over wetlands
permtting in Alaska. Each piece of the issue involved
negotiation with the federal governnment. He noticed that
every mning state in the nation who participated in the
meetings signaled a higher level of anxiety with federal
overreach.

8:17:12 PM

Senator G essel added that the I MCC participated with other
western states on issues related to mning royalties.
Al aska did not participate in much mneral resource royalty
shari ng.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



8:18:12 PM

M. Fogels added that the federal governnent held back on
royalties. The IMC effort would also aid the broader
resource devel opnent spectrumin Al aska.

8:18: 48 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze CLOSED public testinony.

Representative Costello discussed the fiscal notes. She
began with fiscal note 1, which showed a fiscal inpact of
$60 thousand for FY 14 through FY 19, while fiscal note 2
was a zero note.

Representative WIson asked about the second page of fiscal
note 1. She stated that the fiscal note stated that Al aska
would be the 20th state to join the conpact as a ful
menber. She understood that Alaska would be the second
state to join as a full nmenber. M. Fogels replied that
Utah was the only western state that had joined as a full
nenber .

8:21:40 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze had an issue with travel for DNR He asked
Representative Costello if she was confortable with the
fiscal note.

Representative Costello wondered about reducing the trave
conponent by half. M. Fogels replied that the neeting
opportunities would be fewer. He stated that the synposiuns
woul d not be attended.

Representative Costello repeated the question to Senator
G essel. Senator G essel stated that the attendance woul d
be reduced for Alaska as a result. She hoped that the
departnment would find other neans. She preferred face-to-
face attendance to tel econference.

Co-Chair Stoltze st at ed t hat associ at ed travel was
i nt roduced.

8:24:18 PM

House Fi nance Committee 24 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



Co-Chair Stoltze MOVED that the travel portion of fisca
note 1 was reduced to $15 thousand. Representative Costello
OBJECTED f or di scussi on.

Representative Costello understood that travel costs were
great, but she had faith that the departnent would seek
ef fici enci es. Representati ve Costello W THDREW  her
OBJECTI ON.

Co-Chair Stoltze AMENDED the fiscal note to show a $5
t housand reducti on.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the dues were structured on
production or state revenues.

8:25:53 PM

M. Fogels replied that the IMCC structured the dues
cal cul ation by devel oping a two-year budget, which was then
projected out and divided in half. Half of the final nunber
was prorated and divided evenly anong nenber states. The
other half was made up as a percentage of production.

Co-Chair Stoltze understood that there was a cap to the
dues.

8:27:12 PM

Senator G essel commented that when new stated join the
conpact as full nenbers, the price of dues decreases.

Representative Costello MOVED to REPORT SB 2 as anended out
of commttee wth individual recomendations and the
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was
so order ed.

SB 2 was REPORTED out of conmttee with a "do pass”
recommendation and with one new anended fiscal note from
Depar t ment of Nat ur al Resources and one previously
publ i shed zero fiscal note: FN 2(ADM.

8:29: 25 PM

Representative Gara asked about Departnment of Revenue and
the offer to answer questions regarding the nodeling of HCS
CSSB 21(RES). Co-Chair Stoltze concurred.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



8:31: 03 PM

#
ADJ OURNIVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 8:31 p. m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 26 04/ 10/ 13 1:39 P. M



